

SOLVING THE MYSTERIES OF SERVICE EMPLOYEE SENIORITY AND EXPERIENCE: MULTICLASSIFIED JOBS, SUBSTITUTE ASSIGNMENTS AND OTHER HEAD-SCRATCHERS

WVASBO SPRING CONFERENCE

Embassy Suites, Charleston, WV

Attorneys Howard Seufer, Jr. and Rebecca M. Tinder

May 17, 2018



EDUCATION PRACTICE GROUP ATTORNEYS

Rick Boothby, Parkersburg

Office: (304) 420-5535; Cell: (740) 373-1693

rboothby@bowlesrice.com

Kim Croyle, Morgantown

Office: (304) 285-2504; Cell: (304) 319-4745

kcroyle@bowlesrice.com

Canon Hill, Charleston

Office: (304) 347-1182; Cell: (478) 954-7739

chill@bowlesrice.com

Howard Seufer, Jr., Charleston

Office: (304) 347-1776; Cell: (304) 767-1804

hseufer@bowlesrice.com

Laura Sutton, Martinsburg

Office: (304) 264-4216; Cell (304) 676-4941

lsutton@bowlesrice.com

Rebecca Tinder, Charleston

Office: (304) 347-2132; Cell: (304) 545-4097

rtinder@bowlesrice.com

EDUCATION PRACTICE GROUP STAFF

Sarah Simpson Plantz

Charleston, (304) 347-1183 splantz@bowlesrice.com

Linda Poff

Parkersburg, (304) 420-5508 lpoff@bowlesrice.com

OTHER BOWLES RICE ATTORNEYS PROVIDING SUPPORT TO PUBLIC EDUCATION CLIENTS IN SPECIFIC AREAS

(Contact Information may be found at www.bowlesrice.com or by calling (304) 347-1100)

Mark Adkins – Construction Litigation.

Bob Bays – Condemnations.

Berkeley Bentley – FOIA Replies.

Aaron Boone – Civil Litigation on behalf of School Boards.

Michael Cardi – Title IX.

Kayla Cook – Title IX.

Josh Cottle – Education Services Cooperatives; Employee Grievances and Appeals.

Mark D'Antoni – Acquisition and Disposition of Real Estate.

Roger Hanshaw - Parliamentary Procedure; Education Services Cooperatives.

Ashley Hardesty O'Dell – Civil Litigation on behalf of School Boards.

Roger Hunter – Bond Issues, Excess Levies, Lease Purchase.

Bob Kent – Civil Litigation on behalf of School Boards.

Robert Kiss – PILOTs and Tax

Tom Pearcy – Bond Issues; Excess Levies; Lease Purchase.

Steve Prunty – Easements.

Marion Ray – Workers Compensation.

Floyd "Kin" Sayre – Taxes; PILOTs

Cam Siegrist – Bond Issues, Excess Levies, Lease Purchase.

Ken Webb – Construction Issues and Litigation.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-7a (excerpt). Employment, promotion and transfer of professional personnel; seniority	1
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-7b. Calculation of seniority for professional personnel	2
West Virginia Code§ 18A-4-8b (excerpt). Seniority rights for school service personnel.	3
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-8e (excerpt). Competency testing for service personnel; and recertification testing for bus operators	3
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-8g	4



§18A-4-7a. Employment, promotion and transfer of professional personnel; seniority.

2 *****

- (g) With the exception of guidance counselors, the seniority of classroom teachers, as defined in section one, article one of this chapter, shall be determined on the basis of the length of time the employee has been employed as a regular full-time certified and/or licensed professional educator by the county board of education and shall be granted in all areas that the employee is certified, licensed or both.
- (h) Upon completion of one hundred thirty-three days of employment in any one school year, substitute teachers, except retired teachers and other retired professional educators employed as substitutes, shall accrue seniority exclusively for the purpose of applying for employment as a permanent, full-time professional employee. One hundred thirty-three days or more of said employment shall be prorated and shall vest as a fraction of the school year worked by the permanent, full-time teacher.
- (i) Guidance counselors and all other professional employees, as defined in section one, article one of this chapter, except classroom teachers, shall gain seniority in their nonteaching area of professional employment on the basis of the length of time the employee has been employed by the county board of education in that area: Provided, That if an employee is certified as a classroom teacher, the employee accrues classroom teaching seniority for the time that employee is employed in another professional area. For the purposes of accruing seniority under this paragraph, employment as principal, supervisor or central office administrator, as defined in section one, article one of this chapter, shall be considered one area of employment.
- (j) Employment for a full employment term equals one year of seniority, but an employee may not accrue more than one year of seniority during any given fiscal year. Employment for less than the full employment term shall be prorated. A random selection system established by the employees and approved by the county board shall be used to determine the priority if two or more employees accumulate identical seniority: Provided, That when two or more principals have accumulated identical seniority, decisions on reductions in force shall be based on qualifications.

29 *****



§ 18A-4-7b. Calculation of seniority for professional personnel.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this code to the contrary, seniority for professional personnel as defined in section one [§§ 18A-1-1], article one, chapter eighteen-a of this code shall be calculated pursuant to the provisions of section seven-a [§§ 18A-4-7a] of this article as well as the following: Provided, That any recalculation of seniority of a professional personnel employee that may be required in order to remain consistent with the provisions contained herein shall be calculated retroactively, but shall not be utilized for the purposes of reversing any decision that has been made or grievance that has been filed prior to the effective date of this section:

- (a) A professional employee shall begin to accrue seniority upon commencement of the employee's duties.
- (b) An employee shall receive seniority credit for each day the employee is professionally employed regardless of whether the employee receives pay for that day: Provided, That no employee shall receive seniority credit for any day the employee is suspended without pay pursuant to section eight [§§ 18A-2-8], article two of this chapter: Provided, however, That an employee who is on an approved leave of absence shall accrue seniority during the period of time that the employee is on the approved leave of absence.
- (c) Any professional employee whose employment with a county board of education is terminated either voluntarily or through a reduction-in-force shall, upon reemployment with the same board of education in a regular full-time position, receive credit for all seniority previously accumulated with the board of education at the date the employee's employment was terminated.
- (d) Any professional employee whose employment has been terminated through reduction in force and whose name is on the preferred recall list shall retain all accumulated seniority for the purpose of seeking reemployment with the county from which he or she was terminated and nothing in this section may be construed to the contrary.
- (e) Any professional employee employed for a full employment term but in a part-time position shall receive seniority credit for each day of employment prorated to the proportion of a full employment day the employee is required to work: Provided, That nothing herein allows a regular full-time employee to be credited with less than a full day of seniority credit for each day the employee is employed by the board: Provided, however, That this calculation of seniority for part-time professional personnel is prospective and does not reduce any seniority credit accumulated by any employee prior to the effective date of this section: Provided further, That for the purposes of this section a part-time employee shall be defined as an employee who is employed less than three and one-half hours per day.



§18A-4-8b. Seniority rights for school service personnel.

1

16

2 (d) (2) Each class title listed in section eight of this article is considered a separate 3 classification category of employment for service personnel, except for those class titles having 4 Roman numeral designations, which are considered a single classification of employment: 5 * * * * * 6 §18A-4-8e. Competency testing for service personnel; and recertification testing for bus 1 operators. 2 (a) The state board shall develop and make available competency tests for all of the 3 classification titles defined in section eight of this article and listed in section eight-a of this article 4 for service personnel. The board shall review and, if needed, update the competency tests at least 5 every five years. Each classification title defined and listed is considered a separate classification 6 category of employment for service personnel and has a separate competency test, except for those 7 class titles having Roman numeral designations, which are considered a single classification of 8 employment and have a single competency test. 9 (1) The cafeteria manager class title is included in the same classification category 10 11 as cooks and has the same competency test. (2) The executive secretary class title is included in the same classification category 12 as secretaries and has the same competency test. 13 (3) The classification titles of chief mechanic, mechanic and assistant mechanic are 14 included in one classification title and have the same competency test. 15

* * * * *



§18A-4-8g. Determination of seniority for service personnel.

2	(a) Seniority accumulation for a regular school service person:
<i>3 4</i>	(1) Begins on the date the employee enters upon regular employment duties pursuant to a contract as provided in section five, article two of this chapter;
5 6	(2) Continues until the service person's employment as a regular employee is severed with the county board; and
7 8	(3) Does not cease to accumulate when the county board has authorized an absence whether without pay or due to illness or other reason over which the employee has no control.
9	(b) Seniority accumulation for a substitute service person:
10 11 12	(1) Begins on the date the employee enters upon the duties of a substitute as provided in section fifteen of this article, after executing with the county board a contract of employment as provided in section five, article two of this chapter; and
13 14 15	(2) Continues until the employee enters into the duties of a regular employment contract as provided in section five, article two of this chapter; or employment as a substitute service person with the county board is severed.
16 17	(c) Seniority of a regular or substitute service person does not continue to accumulate under the following conditions:
18 19	(1) When a service person is willfully absent from employment duties because of a concerted work stoppage or strike; or
20	(2) When a service person is suspended without pay.
21 22 23	(d) For all purposes including the filling of vacancies and reduction in force, seniority shall be accumulated within particular classification categories of employment as those classification categories are referred to in section eight-e of this article.
24 25 26 27	(e) When implementing a reduction in force, the service person with the least seniority within a particular classification category shall be properly released and placed on the preferred recall list. The particular classification title held by a service person within the classification category may not be considered when implementing a reduction in force.
28 29	(f) On or before the first day of September and the fifteenth day of January of each school year, county boards shall post at each county school or working station the current seniority

list or lists of each service personnel classification. Each list shall contain the name of each



regularly employed school service person employed in each classification and the date that each employee began performing his or her assigned duties in each classification. Current seniority lists of substitute school service personnel shall be available to employees upon request at the county board office.

- (g) The seniority of a service person who transfers out of a class title or classification category of employment and subsequently returns to that class title or classification category of employment is calculated as follows:
- (1) The county board shall establish the number of calendar days between the date the service person left the class title or category of employment in question and the date of return to the class title or classification category of employment.
- (2) This number of days shall be added to the service person's initial seniority date to establish a new beginning seniority date within the class title or classification category.
- (3) The service person then shall be considered as having held uninterrupted service within the class title or classification category from the newly established seniority date.

The seniority of an employee who has had a break in the accumulation of seniority as a result of being willfully absent from employment duties because of a concerted work stoppage or strike shall be calculated in the same manner.

- (h) Beginning on the first day of July, two thousand seven, a substitute school service person shall acquire regular employment status, but not regular employee job bidding rights or regular seniority, if the employee receives a position pursuant to the leave of absence or suspension provisions of subdivisions (2) and (5), subsection (a), section fifteen of this article.
- (1) A substitute service person shall accumulate substitute employee seniority while holding a position acquired pursuant to subsections (2) and (5).
- (2) Upon termination of the regular service person's leave of absence or suspension, the substitute service person shall return to the status previously held.
- (3) County boards are not prohibited from providing any benefits of regular employment for substitute service personnel, but the benefits may not include regular service personnel employee status or seniority.
- (i) If two or more service personnel accumulate identical seniority, the priority shall be determined by a random selection system established by the service personnel and approved by the county board.



(1) A board shall conduct the random selection within thirty days of the time the service personnel establish an identical seniority date. All service personnel with an identical seniority date within the same class title or classification category shall participate in the random selection.

- (2) As long as the affected employees hold identical seniority within the same classification category, the initial random selection conducted by the board shall be permanent for the duration of the employment within the same classification category of the employees by the board. This random selection priority applies to the filling of vacancies and to the reduction in force of school service personnel.
- (3) If any other service person subsequently acquires seniority identical to the employees involved in the original random selection, a second random selection shall be held within thirty days to determine the seniority ranking of the new employee within the group.
- (A) The priority between the employees who participated in the original random selection remains the same.
- (B) The second random selection is performed by placing numbered pieces of paper equal to the number of employees with identical seniority in a container. Any service person who was not involved in the original random selection shall draw a number from the container which will determine his or her seniority within the group as a whole.
- (C) This process will be repeated if any additional service person subsequently acquires identical seniority.
- (D) The same process shall be used if any additional service person is subsequently discovered to have the same seniority as the original group of employees but who did not participate in the original random selection due to oversight or mistake.
- (j) Service personnel who are employed in a classification category of employment at the time when a vacancy is posted in the same classification category of employment shall be given first opportunity to fill the vacancy.
- (k) Seniority acquired as a substitute service person and as a regular service person shall be calculated separately and may not be combined for any purpose. Seniority acquired within different classification categories shall be calculated separately. If a school service employee applies for a position outside of the classification category he or she currently holds, and if the vacancy is not filled by an applicant within the classification category of the vacancy, the applicant shall combine all regular employment seniority acquired for the purpose of bidding on the position.
- (l) A school service person who holds a multiclassification title accrues seniority in each classification category of employment that the employee holds and is considered an employee



of each classification category contained within his or her multiclassification title. A multiclassified service person is subject to reduction in force in any category of employment contained within his or her multiclassification title, based upon the seniority accumulated within that category of employment. If a multiclassified service person is subject to a reduction in force in one classification category, the service person retains employment in any of the other classification categories that he or she holds within his or her multiclassification title. In that case, the county board shall delete the appropriate classification title or classification category from the contract of the multiclassified employee.

- (m) When applying to fill a vacancy outside the classification categories held by a multiclassified service person, seniority acquired simultaneously in different classification categories is calculated as if accrued in one classification category only.
- (n) The seniority conferred in this section applies retroactively to all affected school service personnel, but the rights incidental to the seniority commence as of the effective date of this section.



These materials are presented with the understanding that the information provided is not legal advice. Due to the rapidly changing nature of the law, information contained in these materials may become outdated. Anyone using information contained in these materials should always research original sources of authority and update this information to ensure accuracy when dealing with a specific matter. No person should act or rely upon the information contained in these materials without seeking the advice of an attorney.



SOLVING THE MYSTERIES OF SERVICE EMPLOYEE SENIORITY AND EXPERIENCE: MULTICLASSIFIED JOBS, SUBSTITUTE ASSIGNMENTS AND OTHER HEAD-SCRATCHERS

WVASBO SPRING CONFERENCE

Embassy Suites, Charleston, WV

Attorneys Howard Seufer, Jr. and Rebecca M. Tinder

May 17, 2018



EDUCATION PRACTICE GROUP ATTORNEYS

Rick Boothby, Parkersburg

Office: (304) 420-5535; Cell: (740) 373-1693

rboothby@bowlesrice.com

Kim Croyle, Morgantown

Office: (304) 285-2504; Cell: (304) 319-4745

kcroyle@bowlesrice.com

Canon Hill, Charleston

Office: (304) 347-1182; Cell: (478) 954-7739

chill@bowlesrice.com

Howard Seufer, Jr., Charleston

Office: (304) 347-1776; Cell: (304) 767-1804

hseufer@bowlesrice.com

Laura Sutton, Martinsburg

Office: (304) 264-4216; Cell (304) 676-4941

lsutton@bowlesrice.com

Rebecca Tinder, Charleston

Office: (304) 347-2132; Cell: (304) 545-4097

rtinder@bowlesrice.com

EDUCATION PRACTICE GROUP STAFF

Sarah Simpson Plantz

Charleston, (304) 347-1183 splantz@bowlesrice.com

Linda Poff

Parkersburg, (304) 420-5508 lpoff@bowlesrice.com

OTHER BOWLES RICE ATTORNEYS PROVIDING SUPPORT TO PUBLIC EDUCATION CLIENTS IN SPECIFIC AREAS

(Contact Information may be found at www.bowlesrice.com or by calling (304) 347-1100)

Mark Adkins – Construction Litigation.

Bob Bays – Condemnations.

Berkeley Bentley – FOIA Replies.

Aaron Boone – Civil Litigation on behalf of School Boards.

Michael Cardi – Title IX.

Kayla Cook – Title IX.

Josh Cottle – Education Services Cooperatives; Employee Grievances and Appeals.

Mark D'Antoni – Acquisition and Disposition of Real Estate.

Roger Hanshaw - Parliamentary Procedure; Education Services Cooperatives.

Ashley Hardesty O'Dell – Civil Litigation on behalf of School Boards.

Roger Hunter – Bond Issues, Excess Levies, Lease Purchase.

Bob Kent – Civil Litigation on behalf of School Boards.

Robert Kiss – PILOTs and Tax

Tom Pearcy – Bond Issues; Excess Levies; Lease Purchase.

Steve Prunty – Easements.

Marion Ray – Workers Compensation.

Floyd "Kin" Sayre – Taxes; PILOTs

Cam Siegrist – Bond Issues, Excess Levies, Lease Purchase.

Ken Webb – Construction Issues and Litigation.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-7a (excerpt). Employment, promotion and transfer of professional personnel; seniority	1
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-7b. Calculation of seniority for professional personnel	2
West Virginia Code§ 18A-4-8b (excerpt). Seniority rights for school service personnel.	3
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-8e (excerpt). Competency testing for service personnel; and recertification testing for bus operators	3
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-8g	4



§18A-4-7a. Employment, promotion and transfer of professional personnel; seniority.

2 *****

- (g) With the exception of guidance counselors, the seniority of classroom teachers, as defined in section one, article one of this chapter, shall be determined on the basis of the length of time the employee has been employed as a regular full-time certified and/or licensed professional educator by the county board of education and shall be granted in all areas that the employee is certified, licensed or both.
- (h) Upon completion of one hundred thirty-three days of employment in any one school year, substitute teachers, except retired teachers and other retired professional educators employed as substitutes, shall accrue seniority exclusively for the purpose of applying for employment as a permanent, full-time professional employee. One hundred thirty-three days or more of said employment shall be prorated and shall vest as a fraction of the school year worked by the permanent, full-time teacher.
- (i) Guidance counselors and all other professional employees, as defined in section one, article one of this chapter, except classroom teachers, shall gain seniority in their nonteaching area of professional employment on the basis of the length of time the employee has been employed by the county board of education in that area: Provided, That if an employee is certified as a classroom teacher, the employee accrues classroom teaching seniority for the time that employee is employed in another professional area. For the purposes of accruing seniority under this paragraph, employment as principal, supervisor or central office administrator, as defined in section one, article one of this chapter, shall be considered one area of employment.
- (j) Employment for a full employment term equals one year of seniority, but an employee may not accrue more than one year of seniority during any given fiscal year. Employment for less than the full employment term shall be prorated. A random selection system established by the employees and approved by the county board shall be used to determine the priority if two or more employees accumulate identical seniority: Provided, That when two or more principals have accumulated identical seniority, decisions on reductions in force shall be based on qualifications.

29 *****



§ 18A-4-7b. Calculation of seniority for professional personnel.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this code to the contrary, seniority for professional personnel as defined in section one [§§ 18A-1-1], article one, chapter eighteen-a of this code shall be calculated pursuant to the provisions of section seven-a [§§ 18A-4-7a] of this article as well as the following: Provided, That any recalculation of seniority of a professional personnel employee that may be required in order to remain consistent with the provisions contained herein shall be calculated retroactively, but shall not be utilized for the purposes of reversing any decision that has been made or grievance that has been filed prior to the effective date of this section:

- (a) A professional employee shall begin to accrue seniority upon commencement of the employee's duties.
- (b) An employee shall receive seniority credit for each day the employee is professionally employed regardless of whether the employee receives pay for that day: Provided, That no employee shall receive seniority credit for any day the employee is suspended without pay pursuant to section eight [§§ 18A-2-8], article two of this chapter: Provided, however, That an employee who is on an approved leave of absence shall accrue seniority during the period of time that the employee is on the approved leave of absence.
- (c) Any professional employee whose employment with a county board of education is terminated either voluntarily or through a reduction-in-force shall, upon reemployment with the same board of education in a regular full-time position, receive credit for all seniority previously accumulated with the board of education at the date the employee's employment was terminated.
- (d) Any professional employee whose employment has been terminated through reduction in force and whose name is on the preferred recall list shall retain all accumulated seniority for the purpose of seeking reemployment with the county from which he or she was terminated and nothing in this section may be construed to the contrary.
- (e) Any professional employee employed for a full employment term but in a part-time position shall receive seniority credit for each day of employment prorated to the proportion of a full employment day the employee is required to work: Provided, That nothing herein allows a regular full-time employee to be credited with less than a full day of seniority credit for each day the employee is employed by the board: Provided, however, That this calculation of seniority for part-time professional personnel is prospective and does not reduce any seniority credit accumulated by any employee prior to the effective date of this section: Provided further, That for the purposes of this section a part-time employee shall be defined as an employee who is employed less than three and one-half hours per day.



§18A-4-8b. Seniority rights for school service personnel.

1

16

2 (d) (2) Each class title listed in section eight of this article is considered a separate 3 classification category of employment for service personnel, except for those class titles having 4 Roman numeral designations, which are considered a single classification of employment: 5 * * * * * 6 §18A-4-8e. Competency testing for service personnel; and recertification testing for bus 1 operators. 2 (a) The state board shall develop and make available competency tests for all of the 3 classification titles defined in section eight of this article and listed in section eight-a of this article 4 for service personnel. The board shall review and, if needed, update the competency tests at least 5 every five years. Each classification title defined and listed is considered a separate classification 6 category of employment for service personnel and has a separate competency test, except for those 7 class titles having Roman numeral designations, which are considered a single classification of 8 employment and have a single competency test. 9 (1) The cafeteria manager class title is included in the same classification category 10 11 as cooks and has the same competency test. (2) The executive secretary class title is included in the same classification category 12 as secretaries and has the same competency test. 13 (3) The classification titles of chief mechanic, mechanic and assistant mechanic are 14 included in one classification title and have the same competency test. 15

* * * * *



§18A-4-8g. Determination of seniority for service personnel.

2	(a) Seniority accumulation for a regular school service person:
<i>3 4</i>	(1) Begins on the date the employee enters upon regular employment duties pursuant to a contract as provided in section five, article two of this chapter;
5 6	(2) Continues until the service person's employment as a regular employee is severed with the county board; and
7 8	(3) Does not cease to accumulate when the county board has authorized an absence whether without pay or due to illness or other reason over which the employee has no control.
9	(b) Seniority accumulation for a substitute service person:
10 11 12	(1) Begins on the date the employee enters upon the duties of a substitute as provided in section fifteen of this article, after executing with the county board a contract of employment as provided in section five, article two of this chapter; and
13 14 15	(2) Continues until the employee enters into the duties of a regular employment contract as provided in section five, article two of this chapter; or employment as a substitute service person with the county board is severed.
16 17	(c) Seniority of a regular or substitute service person does not continue to accumulate under the following conditions:
18 19	(1) When a service person is willfully absent from employment duties because of a concerted work stoppage or strike; or
20	(2) When a service person is suspended without pay.
21 22 23	(d) For all purposes including the filling of vacancies and reduction in force, seniority shall be accumulated within particular classification categories of employment as those classification categories are referred to in section eight-e of this article.
24 25 26 27	(e) When implementing a reduction in force, the service person with the least seniority within a particular classification category shall be properly released and placed on the preferred recall list. The particular classification title held by a service person within the classification category may not be considered when implementing a reduction in force.
28 29	(f) On or before the first day of September and the fifteenth day of January of each school year, county boards shall post at each county school or working station the current seniority

list or lists of each service personnel classification. Each list shall contain the name of each



regularly employed school service person employed in each classification and the date that each employee began performing his or her assigned duties in each classification. Current seniority lists of substitute school service personnel shall be available to employees upon request at the county board office.

- (g) The seniority of a service person who transfers out of a class title or classification category of employment and subsequently returns to that class title or classification category of employment is calculated as follows:
- (1) The county board shall establish the number of calendar days between the date the service person left the class title or category of employment in question and the date of return to the class title or classification category of employment.
- (2) This number of days shall be added to the service person's initial seniority date to establish a new beginning seniority date within the class title or classification category.
- (3) The service person then shall be considered as having held uninterrupted service within the class title or classification category from the newly established seniority date.

The seniority of an employee who has had a break in the accumulation of seniority as a result of being willfully absent from employment duties because of a concerted work stoppage or strike shall be calculated in the same manner.

- (h) Beginning on the first day of July, two thousand seven, a substitute school service person shall acquire regular employment status, but not regular employee job bidding rights or regular seniority, if the employee receives a position pursuant to the leave of absence or suspension provisions of subdivisions (2) and (5), subsection (a), section fifteen of this article.
- (1) A substitute service person shall accumulate substitute employee seniority while holding a position acquired pursuant to subsections (2) and (5).
- (2) Upon termination of the regular service person's leave of absence or suspension, the substitute service person shall return to the status previously held.
- (3) County boards are not prohibited from providing any benefits of regular employment for substitute service personnel, but the benefits may not include regular service personnel employee status or seniority.
- (i) If two or more service personnel accumulate identical seniority, the priority shall be determined by a random selection system established by the service personnel and approved by the county board.



(1) A board shall conduct the random selection within thirty days of the time the service personnel establish an identical seniority date. All service personnel with an identical seniority date within the same class title or classification category shall participate in the random selection.

- (2) As long as the affected employees hold identical seniority within the same classification category, the initial random selection conducted by the board shall be permanent for the duration of the employment within the same classification category of the employees by the board. This random selection priority applies to the filling of vacancies and to the reduction in force of school service personnel.
- (3) If any other service person subsequently acquires seniority identical to the employees involved in the original random selection, a second random selection shall be held within thirty days to determine the seniority ranking of the new employee within the group.
- (A) The priority between the employees who participated in the original random selection remains the same.
- (B) The second random selection is performed by placing numbered pieces of paper equal to the number of employees with identical seniority in a container. Any service person who was not involved in the original random selection shall draw a number from the container which will determine his or her seniority within the group as a whole.
- (C) This process will be repeated if any additional service person subsequently acquires identical seniority.
- (D) The same process shall be used if any additional service person is subsequently discovered to have the same seniority as the original group of employees but who did not participate in the original random selection due to oversight or mistake.
- (j) Service personnel who are employed in a classification category of employment at the time when a vacancy is posted in the same classification category of employment shall be given first opportunity to fill the vacancy.
- (k) Seniority acquired as a substitute service person and as a regular service person shall be calculated separately and may not be combined for any purpose. Seniority acquired within different classification categories shall be calculated separately. If a school service employee applies for a position outside of the classification category he or she currently holds, and if the vacancy is not filled by an applicant within the classification category of the vacancy, the applicant shall combine all regular employment seniority acquired for the purpose of bidding on the position.
- (l) A school service person who holds a multiclassification title accrues seniority in each classification category of employment that the employee holds and is considered an employee



of each classification category contained within his or her multiclassification title. A multiclassified service person is subject to reduction in force in any category of employment contained within his or her multiclassification title, based upon the seniority accumulated within that category of employment. If a multiclassified service person is subject to a reduction in force in one classification category, the service person retains employment in any of the other classification categories that he or she holds within his or her multiclassification title. In that case, the county board shall delete the appropriate classification title or classification category from the contract of the multiclassified employee.

- (m) When applying to fill a vacancy outside the classification categories held by a multiclassified service person, seniority acquired simultaneously in different classification categories is calculated as if accrued in one classification category only.
- (n) The seniority conferred in this section applies retroactively to all affected school service personnel, but the rights incidental to the seniority commence as of the effective date of this section.



These materials are presented with the understanding that the information provided is not legal advice. Due to the rapidly changing nature of the law, information contained in these materials may become outdated. Anyone using information contained in these materials should always research original sources of authority and update this information to ensure accuracy when dealing with a specific matter. No person should act or rely upon the information contained in these materials without seeking the advice of an attorney.



SOLVING THE MYSTERIES OF SERVICE EMPLOYEE SENIORITY AND EXPERIENCE: MULTICLASSIFIED JOBS, SUBSTITUTE ASSIGNMENTS AND OTHER HEAD-SCRATCHERS

WVASBO SPRING CONFERENCE

Embassy Suites, Charleston, WV

Attorneys Howard Seufer, Jr. and Rebecca M. Tinder

May 17, 2018



EDUCATION PRACTICE GROUP ATTORNEYS

Rick Boothby, Parkersburg

Office: (304) 420-5535; Cell: (740) 373-1693

rboothby@bowlesrice.com

Kim Croyle, Morgantown

Office: (304) 285-2504; Cell: (304) 319-4745

kcroyle@bowlesrice.com

Canon Hill, Charleston

Office: (304) 347-1182; Cell: (478) 954-7739

chill@bowlesrice.com

Howard Seufer, Jr., Charleston

Office: (304) 347-1776; Cell: (304) 767-1804

hseufer@bowlesrice.com

Laura Sutton, Martinsburg

Office: (304) 264-4216; Cell (304) 676-4941

lsutton@bowlesrice.com

Rebecca Tinder, Charleston

Office: (304) 347-2132; Cell: (304) 545-4097

rtinder@bowlesrice.com

EDUCATION PRACTICE GROUP STAFF

Sarah Simpson Plantz

Charleston, (304) 347-1183 splantz@bowlesrice.com

Linda Poff

Parkersburg, (304) 420-5508 lpoff@bowlesrice.com

OTHER BOWLES RICE ATTORNEYS PROVIDING SUPPORT TO PUBLIC EDUCATION CLIENTS IN SPECIFIC AREAS

(Contact Information may be found at www.bowlesrice.com or by calling (304) 347-1100)

Mark Adkins – Construction Litigation.

Bob Bays – Condemnations.

Berkeley Bentley – FOIA Replies.

Aaron Boone – Civil Litigation on behalf of School Boards.

Michael Cardi – Title IX.

Kayla Cook – Title IX.

Josh Cottle – Education Services Cooperatives; Employee Grievances and Appeals.

Mark D'Antoni – Acquisition and Disposition of Real Estate.

Roger Hanshaw - Parliamentary Procedure; Education Services Cooperatives.

Ashley Hardesty O'Dell – Civil Litigation on behalf of School Boards.

Roger Hunter – Bond Issues, Excess Levies, Lease Purchase.

Bob Kent – Civil Litigation on behalf of School Boards.

Robert Kiss – PILOTs and Tax

Tom Pearcy – Bond Issues; Excess Levies; Lease Purchase.

Steve Prunty – Easements.

Marion Ray – Workers Compensation.

Floyd "Kin" Sayre – Taxes; PILOTs

Cam Siegrist – Bond Issues, Excess Levies, Lease Purchase.

Ken Webb – Construction Issues and Litigation.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-7a (excerpt). Employment, promotion and transfer of professional personnel; seniority	1
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-7b. Calculation of seniority for professional personnel	2
West Virginia Code§ 18A-4-8b (excerpt). Seniority rights for school service personnel.	3
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-8e (excerpt). Competency testing for service personnel; and recertification testing for bus operators	3
West Virginia Code § 18A-4-8g	4



§18A-4-7a. Employment, promotion and transfer of professional personnel; seniority.

2 *****

- (g) With the exception of guidance counselors, the seniority of classroom teachers, as defined in section one, article one of this chapter, shall be determined on the basis of the length of time the employee has been employed as a regular full-time certified and/or licensed professional educator by the county board of education and shall be granted in all areas that the employee is certified, licensed or both.
- (h) Upon completion of one hundred thirty-three days of employment in any one school year, substitute teachers, except retired teachers and other retired professional educators employed as substitutes, shall accrue seniority exclusively for the purpose of applying for employment as a permanent, full-time professional employee. One hundred thirty-three days or more of said employment shall be prorated and shall vest as a fraction of the school year worked by the permanent, full-time teacher.
- (i) Guidance counselors and all other professional employees, as defined in section one, article one of this chapter, except classroom teachers, shall gain seniority in their nonteaching area of professional employment on the basis of the length of time the employee has been employed by the county board of education in that area: Provided, That if an employee is certified as a classroom teacher, the employee accrues classroom teaching seniority for the time that employee is employed in another professional area. For the purposes of accruing seniority under this paragraph, employment as principal, supervisor or central office administrator, as defined in section one, article one of this chapter, shall be considered one area of employment.
- (j) Employment for a full employment term equals one year of seniority, but an employee may not accrue more than one year of seniority during any given fiscal year. Employment for less than the full employment term shall be prorated. A random selection system established by the employees and approved by the county board shall be used to determine the priority if two or more employees accumulate identical seniority: Provided, That when two or more principals have accumulated identical seniority, decisions on reductions in force shall be based on qualifications.

29 *****



§ 18A-4-7b. Calculation of seniority for professional personnel.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this code to the contrary, seniority for professional personnel as defined in section one [§§ 18A-1-1], article one, chapter eighteen-a of this code shall be calculated pursuant to the provisions of section seven-a [§§ 18A-4-7a] of this article as well as the following: Provided, That any recalculation of seniority of a professional personnel employee that may be required in order to remain consistent with the provisions contained herein shall be calculated retroactively, but shall not be utilized for the purposes of reversing any decision that has been made or grievance that has been filed prior to the effective date of this section:

- (a) A professional employee shall begin to accrue seniority upon commencement of the employee's duties.
- (b) An employee shall receive seniority credit for each day the employee is professionally employed regardless of whether the employee receives pay for that day: Provided, That no employee shall receive seniority credit for any day the employee is suspended without pay pursuant to section eight [§§ 18A-2-8], article two of this chapter: Provided, however, That an employee who is on an approved leave of absence shall accrue seniority during the period of time that the employee is on the approved leave of absence.
- (c) Any professional employee whose employment with a county board of education is terminated either voluntarily or through a reduction-in-force shall, upon reemployment with the same board of education in a regular full-time position, receive credit for all seniority previously accumulated with the board of education at the date the employee's employment was terminated.
- (d) Any professional employee whose employment has been terminated through reduction in force and whose name is on the preferred recall list shall retain all accumulated seniority for the purpose of seeking reemployment with the county from which he or she was terminated and nothing in this section may be construed to the contrary.
- (e) Any professional employee employed for a full employment term but in a part-time position shall receive seniority credit for each day of employment prorated to the proportion of a full employment day the employee is required to work: Provided, That nothing herein allows a regular full-time employee to be credited with less than a full day of seniority credit for each day the employee is employed by the board: Provided, however, That this calculation of seniority for part-time professional personnel is prospective and does not reduce any seniority credit accumulated by any employee prior to the effective date of this section: Provided further, That for the purposes of this section a part-time employee shall be defined as an employee who is employed less than three and one-half hours per day.



§18A-4-8b. Seniority rights for school service personnel.

1

16

2 (d) (2) Each class title listed in section eight of this article is considered a separate 3 classification category of employment for service personnel, except for those class titles having 4 Roman numeral designations, which are considered a single classification of employment: 5 * * * * * 6 §18A-4-8e. Competency testing for service personnel; and recertification testing for bus 1 operators. 2 (a) The state board shall develop and make available competency tests for all of the 3 classification titles defined in section eight of this article and listed in section eight-a of this article 4 for service personnel. The board shall review and, if needed, update the competency tests at least 5 every five years. Each classification title defined and listed is considered a separate classification 6 category of employment for service personnel and has a separate competency test, except for those 7 class titles having Roman numeral designations, which are considered a single classification of 8 employment and have a single competency test. 9 (1) The cafeteria manager class title is included in the same classification category 10 11 as cooks and has the same competency test. (2) The executive secretary class title is included in the same classification category 12 as secretaries and has the same competency test. 13 (3) The classification titles of chief mechanic, mechanic and assistant mechanic are 14 included in one classification title and have the same competency test. 15

* * * * *



§18A-4-8g. Determination of seniority for service personnel.

2	(a) Seniority accumulation for a regular school service person:
<i>3 4</i>	(1) Begins on the date the employee enters upon regular employment duties pursuant to a contract as provided in section five, article two of this chapter;
5 6	(2) Continues until the service person's employment as a regular employee is severed with the county board; and
7 8	(3) Does not cease to accumulate when the county board has authorized an absence whether without pay or due to illness or other reason over which the employee has no control.
9	(b) Seniority accumulation for a substitute service person:
10 11 12	(1) Begins on the date the employee enters upon the duties of a substitute as provided in section fifteen of this article, after executing with the county board a contract of employment as provided in section five, article two of this chapter; and
13 14 15	(2) Continues until the employee enters into the duties of a regular employment contract as provided in section five, article two of this chapter; or employment as a substitute service person with the county board is severed.
16 17	(c) Seniority of a regular or substitute service person does not continue to accumulate under the following conditions:
18 19	(1) When a service person is willfully absent from employment duties because of a concerted work stoppage or strike; or
20	(2) When a service person is suspended without pay.
21 22 23	(d) For all purposes including the filling of vacancies and reduction in force, seniority shall be accumulated within particular classification categories of employment as those classification categories are referred to in section eight-e of this article.
24 25 26 27	(e) When implementing a reduction in force, the service person with the least seniority within a particular classification category shall be properly released and placed on the preferred recall list. The particular classification title held by a service person within the classification category may not be considered when implementing a reduction in force.
28 29	(f) On or before the first day of September and the fifteenth day of January of each school year, county boards shall post at each county school or working station the current seniority

list or lists of each service personnel classification. Each list shall contain the name of each



regularly employed school service person employed in each classification and the date that each employee began performing his or her assigned duties in each classification. Current seniority lists of substitute school service personnel shall be available to employees upon request at the county board office.

- (g) The seniority of a service person who transfers out of a class title or classification category of employment and subsequently returns to that class title or classification category of employment is calculated as follows:
- (1) The county board shall establish the number of calendar days between the date the service person left the class title or category of employment in question and the date of return to the class title or classification category of employment.
- (2) This number of days shall be added to the service person's initial seniority date to establish a new beginning seniority date within the class title or classification category.
- (3) The service person then shall be considered as having held uninterrupted service within the class title or classification category from the newly established seniority date.

The seniority of an employee who has had a break in the accumulation of seniority as a result of being willfully absent from employment duties because of a concerted work stoppage or strike shall be calculated in the same manner.

- (h) Beginning on the first day of July, two thousand seven, a substitute school service person shall acquire regular employment status, but not regular employee job bidding rights or regular seniority, if the employee receives a position pursuant to the leave of absence or suspension provisions of subdivisions (2) and (5), subsection (a), section fifteen of this article.
- (1) A substitute service person shall accumulate substitute employee seniority while holding a position acquired pursuant to subsections (2) and (5).
- (2) Upon termination of the regular service person's leave of absence or suspension, the substitute service person shall return to the status previously held.
- (3) County boards are not prohibited from providing any benefits of regular employment for substitute service personnel, but the benefits may not include regular service personnel employee status or seniority.
- (i) If two or more service personnel accumulate identical seniority, the priority shall be determined by a random selection system established by the service personnel and approved by the county board.



(1) A board shall conduct the random selection within thirty days of the time the service personnel establish an identical seniority date. All service personnel with an identical seniority date within the same class title or classification category shall participate in the random selection.

- (2) As long as the affected employees hold identical seniority within the same classification category, the initial random selection conducted by the board shall be permanent for the duration of the employment within the same classification category of the employees by the board. This random selection priority applies to the filling of vacancies and to the reduction in force of school service personnel.
- (3) If any other service person subsequently acquires seniority identical to the employees involved in the original random selection, a second random selection shall be held within thirty days to determine the seniority ranking of the new employee within the group.
- (A) The priority between the employees who participated in the original random selection remains the same.
- (B) The second random selection is performed by placing numbered pieces of paper equal to the number of employees with identical seniority in a container. Any service person who was not involved in the original random selection shall draw a number from the container which will determine his or her seniority within the group as a whole.
- (C) This process will be repeated if any additional service person subsequently acquires identical seniority.
- (D) The same process shall be used if any additional service person is subsequently discovered to have the same seniority as the original group of employees but who did not participate in the original random selection due to oversight or mistake.
- (j) Service personnel who are employed in a classification category of employment at the time when a vacancy is posted in the same classification category of employment shall be given first opportunity to fill the vacancy.
- (k) Seniority acquired as a substitute service person and as a regular service person shall be calculated separately and may not be combined for any purpose. Seniority acquired within different classification categories shall be calculated separately. If a school service employee applies for a position outside of the classification category he or she currently holds, and if the vacancy is not filled by an applicant within the classification category of the vacancy, the applicant shall combine all regular employment seniority acquired for the purpose of bidding on the position.
- (l) A school service person who holds a multiclassification title accrues seniority in each classification category of employment that the employee holds and is considered an employee



of each classification category contained within his or her multiclassification title. A multiclassified service person is subject to reduction in force in any category of employment contained within his or her multiclassification title, based upon the seniority accumulated within that category of employment. If a multiclassified service person is subject to a reduction in force in one classification category, the service person retains employment in any of the other classification categories that he or she holds within his or her multiclassification title. In that case, the county board shall delete the appropriate classification title or classification category from the contract of the multiclassified employee.

- (m) When applying to fill a vacancy outside the classification categories held by a multiclassified service person, seniority acquired simultaneously in different classification categories is calculated as if accrued in one classification category only.
- (n) The seniority conferred in this section applies retroactively to all affected school service personnel, but the rights incidental to the seniority commence as of the effective date of this section.



These materials are presented with the understanding that the information provided is not legal advice. Due to the rapidly changing nature of the law, information contained in these materials may become outdated. Anyone using information contained in these materials should always research original sources of authority and update this information to ensure accuracy when dealing with a specific matter. No person should act or rely upon the information contained in these materials without seeking the advice of an attorney.